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VISION 
To be the leading Caribbean Creators, producing world 

class Ideas, Content and Entertainment.

MISSION 
We Build Brands and Create Entertainment
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EXCELLENCE 
Our work is our legacy and the calling 
card for new opportunities still yet to be 
discovered.

GOOD VIBES 
We work hard and laugh harder. 
Choosing to see the positive side of 
every challenge, because only with a 
“good vibe” perspective can you truly 
see the possibilities.

CREATIVITY
We aim for WOW in everything and 
unapologetically deliver ideas that shake 
things up.

ACCOUNTABILITY
We are part of a bigger team and what we do 
affects our clients, our team members and the 
company.

RESPECT 
We value the systems, and structures that 
have been put in place for the benefit of 
each person and the organisation.

PASSION 
We have a crazy energy that thrives under 
pressure, because we’re obsessed with 
delivering the WOW.
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PROGRESS IS IMPOSSIBLE WITHOUT 
CHANGE, AND THOSE WHO CANNOT 
CHANGE THEIR MINDS CANNOT CHANGE 
ANYTHING.
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WE BRING BRANDS TO LIFE THROUGH DYNAMIC, INNOVATIVE 
EXPERIENCES.
The LAB is a strategy to execution full-service advertising agency and 
production house. We are increasing our share in targeted growth areas, 
including digital communication, marketing technology and production. 
The LAB has four distinct business units and one subsidiary: Production, 
Advertising Agency, (“Agency”), Media and Content and Scope Caribbean. 
Our creative services units includes Production which focuses on the our 
core services: pre-production to post-production activities. Through this 
unit we conceptualise, script, project manage, shoot, and edit video 
productions for corporate and entertainment clients. 

The Agency arm is concerned with integrated marketing solutions 
for brands. Our Media arm builds and executes airspace buying and 
placement strategies for traditional, digital and social media platforms 
while our final arm, Content, aims to create branding and home-grown 
content such as docu-series and films. Our subsidiary, Scope Caribbean, is 
a regional digital hub for emerging and established influencers and talent 
to get connected with local and international brands.
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AGENCY
Brand Analysis and Strategy Creative
Concept Development
Campaign and Promotion
Development Branding & Design
Copywriting
Innovation Sessions

PRODUCTION
Creative Direction
Film and Video Production
Production Management
Post-Production
Audio Production
Motion and 3D Graphics
Equipment Rental

MEDIA
Media Strategy & Development
Media Investment Management
Media Planning
Media Buying

CONTENT
Content Marketing
Contention Creation & Development
Digital Content Strategy
Project Development & Creation
Script Development 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Third Annual General 
Meeting of THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED (“The 
LAB”) will be held on  July 18, 2024,  at 10:00 a.m. at its 
Head Office, Units 4 -5, 69 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 
10, Jamaica and/or virtually to consider and, if thought fit, 
to pass the following resolutions:

AUDITED ACCOUNTS 
Resolution No. 1 – Directors’ Report, Auditors Reports and 
Audited Financial Statements 

“THAT the Audited Accounts for the year ended October 
31, 2023 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors, 
circulated with the Notice convening the Meeting, be and 
are hereby received and adopted.”

DIVIDEND
Resolution No. 2 – To ratify that the Ordinary dividends 
and Special dividend paid on January 31, 2023.
“THAT as recommended by the Directors, the final 
dividends of $0.0065 per share as ordinary dividend and 
$0.0304 as special dividend per share paid on January 31, 

2023 be and is hereby ratified and declared as final and 
no further dividends be paid in respect of the year ended 
October 31, 2023.”   

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Article 101 of the Company’s Article of Incorporation 
provides that at every Annual General Meeting one-third of 
the Directors are subject to retirement for the time being, 
or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the 
number nearest to one-third, shall retire from office.    The 
Directors to retire by rotation pursuant to this Article are 
Mr. Michael Bennett, Ms. Maxine Walters and Ms. Tashara 
Lee-Johnson, who all being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-election.  

Resolution No. 3a – Re- election of Michael Bennett
“THAT Mr. Michael Bennett be and is hereby re-elected as 
a Director of the Company.”

Resolution No. 3b – re-election of Maxine Walters
“THAT Ms. Maxine Walters be and is hereby re-elected as a 
Director of the Company.”

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
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Resolution No. 3c – re-election of Tashara Lee Johnson
“THAT Ms. Tashara Lee Johnson be and is hereby re-elected as 
a Director of the Company.”

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Resolution No. 4 – Directors’ Remuneration

“THAT the amount shown in the Audited Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended October 31, 2023 as remuneration 
paid to the Directors for their services as Directors be and is 
hereby approved.” 

Appointment of Auditors and their Remuneration:
Resolution No. 5 – Appointment of Auditors and their 
Remuneration

“THAT Hall Wilson & Associates, Chartered Accountants of 52B 
Molynes Road, Kingston 10, having signified their willingness 
to serve, continue in office as Auditors of the Company, until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, at a 
remuneration to be agreed by the Directors.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Michael Bennett
COMPANY SECRETARY
Dated March 11, 2024

NOTES: 

1.	 A member eligible to attend and vote at a General Meeting is 

entitled to appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend and 

vote instead of him/her.  A proxy, so appointed, need not be a 

member of the Company.  

2.	 All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

3.	 Enclosed is a form of proxy which must be deposited with the 

Secretary, at the Registered Office of the company (69-75 Constant 

Spring Road, Kingston 10) or the Registrar, Jamaica Central Securities 

Depository (“JCSD”), 40 Harbour Street, Kingston, not less than 

forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the 

meeting.
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During the last fiscal year, The LAB further unlocked its DNA of creative disruption, 
ideation and innovation to respond decisively to the evolving creative landscape. 

While there were challenges, given the global rebound efforts from the pandemic 
and macroeconomic conditions, The LAB responded in transformative ways, 
making significant progress on several key areas in its strategic plan. The company 
seized and capitalised on opportunities to amplify its efforts to realize its revitalised 
vision of becoming the leading Caribbean Creators, producing world-class ideas, 
content and entertainment.

The LAB continues to maintain a strong balance sheet with a healthy cash position 
despite the reduction in revenues. Revenue for the financial year ended October 
31, 2023, was $1.1 billion, down 16.4% relative to the prior period. This decline 
was primarily attributable to changing customer advertising spending patterns, 
within the context of the macroeconomic conditions. The revenue achieved was 
derived from the company’s core business lines: Media totalling $672.9 million, 
Production with $296.0 million, and Agency with $155.7 million. Our asset base 
increased as we reinvested in the business through the acquisition of state-of-the-
art equipment, upgrading film studio facilities, and building the capacity of our 
team.

+ +  CHAIRMAN

STEVEN
GOODEN
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Collectively, the company continues its forward momentum 
to realise its 2025 strategic plan. The three strategic 
drivers, which align with the company’s mission, aim to 
achieve greater regional and international recognition. By 
prioritising technology and disruption, expanding into new 
markets, and maintaining a strong focus on quality, the 
company continues to position itself as a forward-thinking, 
innovative, and customer-centred organisation capable of 
meeting the evolving needs of its clients and stakeholders. 

The company remains adaptive and agile, and has grown 
and evolved into a full-service advertising agency. Since its 
inception, The LAB has remained committed to delivering 
cutting-edge solutions to its clients while integrating new 
and modern solutions in the digital market with the same 
commitment to quality and excellence. The LAB’s strategic 
investment in training, assets and social media influencer 
marketing through Scope Caribbean reflects its commitment 
to innovation and growth in the digital landscape. With 
equipped talent and performance tracking, The LAB is 
positioning itself as a leader in the evolving market dynamics 
of influencer marketing. Additionally, the company remains 
proactive in its approach to reorganise its business 
operations to generate fresh revenue streams. To this end, 
The LAB has forged partnerships with international players, 
in particular Alliance Cinema, a renowned Los Angeles-
based production, finance and distribution company, to 

capitalise on emerging content development and licensing 
opportunities both regionally and internationally.

The Board remains committed to providing robust 
strategic foresight and governance, risk management, and 
performance monitoring to bolster efficiency and drive 
The LAB’s success. By staying attuned to market dynamics, 
leveraging our strengths and adopting a data-driven 
approach, the company will continue to navigate challenges 
deftly and capitalise on opportunities for growth and value 
creation for all of our shareholders.

As I close, I want to recognise the team at The LAB and 
express my heartfelt appreciation and gratitude for your 
commitment, diligence, resilience and unrelenting pursuit 
of excellence and innovation. The journey continues. There 
are new roads ahead, and we are poised to build even 
stronger platforms to deliver unparalleled service to our 
clients.

Together, we can achieve even more in 2024.

Steven Gooden
Chairman
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The LAB is committed to the highest standard of corporate 
governance and the maintenance of an effective framework 
for managing and controlling its business. Good governance 
ensures that everyone in the company follows appropriate 
and transparent decision-making processes and that the 
interests of all stakeholders (shareholders, managers, 
employees, suppliers and customers) are protected. The 
company adheres to the principles of the Jamaica  Corporate 
Governance Code, the Jamaica Stock Exchange Junior 
Market Rules and International best practices on corporate 
governance.The Corporate Governance Structure of the 
company is illustrated in the diagram to the right.  

The Shareholders elect the members of the Board, and the 
Board of Directors remains accountable to its Shareholders.  
The Managing Director, who manages the LAB’s day-to-
day activities, is accountable to the Board of Directors 
for the performance of the company and the stewardship 
of its resources.  The Managing Director appoints the 
management team to execute the day to day functions in 
tandem with the approved board mandated strategy and 
delegated authority limits. The Board sub-committees deep 
dive into specific areas within their respective scope, and 
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors.  The 

External Auditor is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to 
the Audit Committee on the internal controls and the accuracy of 
the financial statements.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

COMPANY STRUCTURE
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board is responsible for overseeing management and 
integrally charting the strategic direction for the company’s 
growth, expansion into new areas and long-term sustainability 
for the benefit of all stakeholders.   The specific areas of 
responsibility of the Board are risk management, internal 
controls, financial statement integrity, talent management, 
performance-driven total compensation, revenue diversification 
and generation, operational efficiency, expansion and corporate 
governance. 

The company’s Corporate Governance Policy distinguishes the 
roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Managing Director 
and the Chairman. It also provides clear communication between 
Shareholders, the Board and Management for the efficient 
organisation of the company. Our Corporate Governance Policy 
is reviewed annually to ensure it incorporates best practices 
and/or changes in law. 

During the year under review, the Board focused on the 
following key areas:-
•	 Sustained and diversified revenue growth; 
•	 Diversification of income streams and product offering;
•	 Effectiveness of the risk management and internal controls;
•	 Performance based and total compensation;
•	 Corporate governance;   
•	 Monitoring and management of strategy execution;

•	 Approving the annual operating and capital expenditure 
budgets;  

•	 Approving the company’s financial performance (i.e. 
quarterly financial results,  audited financial statements, 
Management Discussion and Analysis); and

•	 Declaration of interim dividend and recommendation of 
the final dividend.

BOARD STRUCTURE
The Board has constituted  and delegated functions to its 
three (3) sub-committees to improve its  effectiveness and 
efficiency in executing its  fiduciary duties and responsibil-
ities.  The Standing Committees of the Board of Directors 
are  the Audit, Remuneration and Corporate Governance 
committees.

The Chair of each Board Committee formally reports to the 
Board (at each quarterly meeting) on the matters discussed at 
the committee meetings and makes recommendations to the 
Board in accordance with its Terms of Reference.  Committee 
meetings are held one week before the Board meetings to 
enable each committee time to review matters within its 
scope and make recommendations to the Board. 

COMPANY STRUCTURE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is made up of three (3) independ-
ent members, namely Mr. Kareem Tomlinson (Chairman), 
appointed in September 2023, Ms. Rochelle Cameron and 
Ms. Maxine Walters, with invitation to attend extended 
to the Managing Director.  The External Auditor is also an 
invitee to the Audit Committee meetings.  Two (2) mem-
bers form a quorum; regularly scheduled meetings are 
held quarterly while other meetings are held as required.   
For the financial year ended  October 31, 2023, the Audit 
Committee met four (4) times.

The Audit Committee plays a critical role to the Board by 
overseeing financial reporting, internal controls, risk man-
agement, internal audit, accuracy of the accounting sys-
tems and the auditing process of the company’s financials.  
The committee’s roles and functions undertaken during the 
year include:
•	 Review and approval of the unaudited quarterly financials 

and audited financial statements;
•	 Monitoring and ensuring that the integrity of the 

financials is maintained;
•	 Compliance with  proper accounting standards  in the 

preparation of the financials; 
•	 Ensuring internal controls and systems are in place to 

identify, report and manage business risks;
•	 Meeting with the External Auditor;

•	 Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
•	 Risk Management;
•	 Review and recommendation of dividend declarations 

and dividend policy;
•	 Corporate governance; and   
•	 Monitoring and management of strategy execution.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee has three (3) independent 
members: Ms. Rochelle Cameron (Chairperson), Ms. 
Maxine Walters and Mr. Steven Gooden. During the year 
under review, the Remuneration Committee held two  (2) 
meetings. The remit of the Remuneration Committee 
includes assisting the  Board with the following: 
•	 Reviewing management performance;
•	 Designing and determining the total compensation for 

the Board of Directors, Executive Directors and Senior 
Management;

•	 Reviewing the company’s compensation philosophy 
around  base pay, benefits and performance-based  
financial and non-financial incentives;

•	 Reviewing the risk associated with incentives potentially  
detrimental to the company’s long-term success;

•	 Reviewing Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) for the 
Managing Director; and

•	 Succession Planning and senior management 
development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Corporate Governance Committee has four (4) 
members: Mr. Steven Gooden (Chairman), Ms. Rochelle 
Cameron, Ms. Kimala Bennett and Mr. Michael Bennett.  
The functions of the Board that are delegated to the 
Remuneration Committee include: 
•	 Annual review of the Corporate Governance Policy;
•	 Identification of a pool of candidates to serve as potential 

Board candidates;
•	 Review of committee composition;
•	 Advising the Board on the best practices in corporate 

governance; 
•	 Review and approval  of timely disclosures to its 

shareholders  as required by the JSE Junior Market 
Rules;

•	 Review related party transactions; and
•	 Review new or pending regulatory changes and their 

impact on The LAB’s operations.

COMPOSITION OF OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Of the seven (7) Directors, four (4) Directors are Independent 
Non-Executive Directors; one (1) Non-Executive Director; 
and two (2) Executive Directors.    All Directors are expected 
to act with “independence” in  the  company’s best interest 
at all times.    The Board considers all non-executive Directors 
to be independent directors.  

In accordance with the Jamaica Corporate Governance 
Code, a Director will not be considered independent where: 
•	 The Director has been an employee of the company 

within the last five (5) years;
•	 The Director is affiliated with a company that acts as 

an advisor or consultant to the company or its related 
parties, or is and has acted in such capacity at any time 
during the past five years;

•	 The Director has any personal service contracts with the 
company, its related parties or its senior management at 
any time during the past five (5) years;

•	 The Director receives additional remuneration from the 
company apart from director’s fee and any performance 
related pay scheme;

•	 The Director is employed as an executive officer of 
another company where any of the company’s executive 
serve on that company’s Board;

•	 The Director represents a significant shareholder; or
•	 The Director is a member of the immediate family of any 

individual who is or has been at any time during the past 
five (5) years, employed by the company or its related 
parties as an executive officer.
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BOARD COMPOSITION
The composition of the Board has a range of experiences which provides a wider perspective in under-
standing various aspects of the company’s business.  During the financial year  2022/2023, there were no 
changes in the composition of our Board.  The Board is comprised of the following persons:

NAMES POSITION AUDIT REMUNERATION CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Steven Gooden,
 Chairman

Independent 
Non-Executive

- Member Member

Kareem Tomlinson • Member Member -

Rochelle Cameron • Member Member Member

Maxine Walters • Member Member

Michael Bennett,
 company Secretary

Non-Executive - - Member

Kimala Bennett, 
Managing Director

Executive 

Director
Member Member Member

Tashara-Lee Johnson, 
Chief Operating Officer

Executive 

Director
Member - -
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GENDERINDEPENDENCE

FemaleNon-Executive MaleIndependent 
Non-Executive

Executive
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Expertise Steven 
Gooden 

Kimala 
Bennett

Michael 
Bennett 

Rochelle 
Cameron

Tashara-
Lee 

Johnson

Kareem 
Tomlinson

Maxine 
Walters

Independent (I)/
Executive (E)/Non-

Executive (NE)
I E NE I E I I

General Management x x x x x x x

Strategic Management x x x x

Finance & Accounting x x

Sales & Marketing x

Legal x

Risk Management x

BOARD DIVERSITY
The company recognises that there are significant benefits to be accrued from having a strong Board of 
Directors.  Our Board possesses diverse skills set, age range and gender, a cross-section of professional 
backgrounds, directors who exercise sound business judgment and possess entrepreneurial experience. This 
diversity and inclusion on our Board provides leverage of the collective of minds able to make solid decisions 
in the best interest of our company and  likely represent the best interest of all stakeholders (our sharehold-
ers, our employees, our clients and our community).

BOARD EXPERTISE COMPOSITION
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE
One measure of the commitment of our Directors to an enhanced corporate governance framework is  the 
track record of attendance at Board and sub-committee meetings during the financial year.  During the 
financial year under review, the attendance at meetings was recorded  as follows (in addition to a Strategy 
Retreat held by the company):

NAMES
BOARD

(6)

AUDIT

(4)

REMUNERATION

(2)
AGM
 (1)

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

(2)

Steven Gooden 6 n/a 2 1 2

Kareem Tomlinson 6 4 2 1 n/a

Rochelle Cameron 6 3 2 1 2

Maxine Walters 6 3 2 1 n/a

Michael Bennett 6 n/a n/a 1 2

Kimala Bennett 6 4 2 1 2

Tashara-Lee 

Johnson
6 3 n/a 1 n/a
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The appointment of board members is governed by the company’s Articles of Incorporation. It states that the 
Directors shall appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the ex-
isting Directors.  The Director appointed shall hold office only until the next Annual General Meeting and be 
eligible for re-election.

Board rotation and retirement is also governed by the company’s Articles. At the first Annual General Meeting, 
one-third (1/3) of the directors shall retire. The Director who has been in office longest, since their last elec-

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

0
Steven 
Gooden

Rochelle
Cameron

Maxine
Walters

Michael
Bennett

Kimala
Bennett

Tashara-Lee 
Johnson

Board Audit Remuneration Corporate Governance

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE

Kareem
Tomlinson
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tion or appointment, shall retire. However, retiring direc-
tors shall be eligible for re-election or re-appointment.   A 
Board member may resign or retire at any time by provid-
ing the Chairman with a written notice of resignation.

During the year under review Mr. Kareem Tomlinson was 
appointed to the Board.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
In accordance with the principles of transparency, equal 
treatment and protection of shareholder interests, the 
Board is committed to maintaining dialogue with share-
holders, while improving stakeholders’ relations.  The com-
pany has several communications channels that provide all 
shareholders with timely and equal access to information.  
These include: -
•	 An Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) at which share-

holders can attend in person or via an online platform, 
with the opportunity to submit questions to manage-
ment;

•	 The Annual Report  which outlines the work undertak-
en during the financial year under review;

•	 Financial results announcements provided quarterly 
and annually;

•	 The company’s website, which is updated to provide 
current information;

•	 The website of the Jamaica Stock Exchange on which 
all postings are placed for the investing public;

•	 Media interviews;
•	 A dedicated email address for shareholders at which 

questions or comments can be submitted to the com-
pany; and

•	 Traditional and social media marketing supplementing 
our information platforms.

At each Annual General Meeting, the company makes 
available  to its  shareholders, the minutes of the previous 
meeting.  Additionally,  the Investor Relations section of 
the company’s website at www.thelabjamaica.com keeps 
its investors informed and provides updates on  announce-
ments, media releases, audited financial statements and 
annual reports.  Enquiries from shareholders and institu-
tional investors on matters relating to their shareholdings 
are welcomed.  Please feel free to contact the Managing 
Director at operations@tpljamaica.com to share your opin-
ions, suggestions, and concerns with us.

Our Corporate Governance Policy is included on our website for review.
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+ INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

STEVEN
GOODEN

Steven Gooden is the Chief Executive Officer of NCB Capital Markets Limited (NCBCM), which is 
the wealth management and investment banking arm of the Jamaican based NCB Financial Group 
Limited. Under his leadership, NCBCM has become a leading investment house in the Caribbean 
having expanded throughout the region via the establishment of hubs in the Cayman Islands, Trinidad 
& Tobago and Barbados. Steven’s ascension to executive management was at 26 years old when 
he was appointed General Manager for what was then one of Jamaica’s leading fund management 
companies. In 2009, he rejoined NCB Capital Markets as Vice President, Investments and Trading; 
successfully integrating the investment management functions of the Group’s subsidiaries with 
combined assets at the time exceeding US$2 billion. Steven has a passion for the development and 
deepening of the region’s capital markets and is the President of the Jamaica Securities Dealers 
Association as well as a Director on the Board of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE). He holds 
directorships in a number of other companies and serves as Chairman for two companies listed on 
the JSE Junior Market. Steven is a holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation, has 
a M.Sc. in Finance and Economics, a B.Sc. in Economics and Accounting, and has received many 
accolades in the areas of research and portfolio management.
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+ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

+ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TASHARA-LEE
JOHNSON

KIMALA
BENNETT

Tashara-Lee Johnson is an experienced Film Producer with a demonstrated history 
of working in Advertising and Media Production. She is the Chief Operating Officer 
of The LAB and has been with the company for over 7 years. In her role, Tashara-Lee 
manages the day to day operations and plays a key role in the strategic growth of 
the company. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Media & Communication with a minor 
in International Relations from The University of the West Indies (Mona), and has 
completed a course in Leadership at the Jack Welch Management Institute. Having 
served primarily in production management roles in previous jobs, Tashara-Lee has 
extensive international experience with campaigns, commercials, feature films, and 
documentaries. Some of these include “King of the Dancehall” by Nick Cannon, 
“Hooked” by Max Emerson, “Flight” by Kia Moses, and “OTR II” by Beyonce and 
Jay-Z. She recently represented Jamaica at the Black Women Film Network Festival 
(Atlanta), Cannes Film Festival (France) and The American Black Film Festival (Miami) 
as the producer of “Flight” which copped several top awards. She has also expanded 
her skillset veering into teaching as a project lecturer for CARIMAC and the OECS’ 
joint Script Writing and Film Production Programme.

Kimala Bennett, the CEO and founder of The LAB, has over a decade of experience in the 
film production and advertising sector. Kimala holds a bachelor’s degree from Mount Holyoke 
College and an Executive MBA from the Jack Welsh Management Institute. She sits on several 
boards and is a member of the Grace Kennedy Innovation Council. Kimala is a published 
author specializing in entrepreneurial manuals such as ‘Starting a Business in Jamaica” and 
“The Young Entrepreneurs’ Handbook”. She is also a recipient of the PSOJ ‘50 Under Fifty 
Business Leaders Shaping Jamaica’s Future Awards’ and the Jamaica Chamber of Commerce 
(JCC) 2019 Award for Entrepreneurship. The film director turned entrepreneur was named the 
2019 Anthony Sabga Laureate for Caribbean Excellence in Entrepreneurship.
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+ INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ROCHELLE
CAMERON

Rochelle Cameron is an attorney-at-law with 20 years at the Jamaican Bar. She served 
for several years as Vice President of Legal and Regulatory for Flow Caribbean where she 
was also company Secretary of Cable & Wireless Jamaica Limited and its subsidiaries. She 
is the founder and currently CEO of Prescient Consulting Services Limited, a firm which 
supports organizations with the development and execution of impactful legal, people and 
communications strategies. She is well known for her strategic management, leadership 
abilities, mentorship and her blend of business acumen and organizational skills allows her 
to be a valuable contributor on various private and public sector boards mentorship. Her 
diverse experience has given her considerable expertise in corporate governance, mergers 
& acquisitions, and business development. She has also become a widely called on public 
speaker for motivation and training in the corporate sphere.

+ NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MICHAEL 
BENNETT

Michael Bennett is a local legend in the music and entertainment industry. Michael is known 
for his philanthropic music ventures including coordinating the two year USAID funded FiWi 
programme at the University of Technology, Jamaica, which taught musical skills as well as 
entertainment management and entrepreneurship. Michael holds a bachelor’s degree in 
Business Administration from NCU and is the owner and Creative Director of the renowned 
Grafton Studios, which has nurtured acts from JC Lodge to Chronixx. Michael has received 
countless awards for his musical work including the 2018 Iconic Mentorship award from the 
Jamaica Reggae Industry Association (JaRIA). He has produced national projects including 
the Jamaica 50 Anthem and the Heart of Jamaica Album for J. Wray and Nephew.
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+ INDEPENDENT  NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

KAREEM
TOMLINSON

MAXINE 
WALTERS

Mr. Kareem Tomlinson currently serves as the General Manager of JMMB Securities Limited 
where he has oversight of and leads the team within the entity. In this role, he is responsible for 
driving the equity related business lines of the JMMB Group. During his 15 year tenure with the 
JMMB Group, he has served in various capacities and amassed wide-ranging experience in areas 
such as private equity, investment banking, portfolio management, mergers & acquisitions, risk 
management, accounting and customer service.

Kareem holds a B.Sc. in Mathematics and Economics from the University of the West Indies, 
Mona and has attained the prestigious Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and Financial Risk 
Manager (FRM) designations which have equipped him with strong technical and analytical skills. 
He has attended various professional training courses in venture capital, credit risk management, 
equity and fixed income products.

Maxine Walters is one of Jamaica’s most respected filmmakers with over 25 years of 
experience as the island’s go-to film partner for high budget international projects. Her brand 
has built a reputation for providing world-class filmmaking in the Caribbean. Her company is 
credited with work for brands such as Virgin Media, Puma and Gatorade. Maxine is known for 
bringing Hollywood to Jamaican film, creating exposure and onset training opportunities for 
local film crews. She has made her mark in various parts of the entertainment sector and is 
one of the founders of Reggae Sunsplash. She broke ground by being credited as associate 
producer of the American TV show “Going to Extremes”, the first Jamaican to do so in the 
US space.

+ INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 27



+ CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

KIMALA
BENNETT

Kimala Bennett, the CEO and founder of The LAB, has over a decade of 
experience in the film production and advertising sector. Kimala holds a 
bachelor’s degree from Mount Holyoke College and an Executive MBA from 
the Jack Welsh Management Institute. She sits on several boards and is a 
member of the Grace Kennedy Innovation Council. Kimala is a published 
author specializing in entrepreneurial manuals such as ‘Starting a Business 
in Jamaica” and “The Young Entrepreneurs’ Handbook”. 

She is also a recipient of the PSOJ ‘50 Under Fifty Business Leaders Shaping 
Jamaica’s Future Awards’ and the Jamaica Chamber of Commerce (JCC) 
2019 Award for Entrepreneurship. The film director turned entrepreneur 
was named the 2019 Anthony Sabga Laureate for Caribbean Excellence in 
Entrepreneurship.
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+ CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

WENDY-ANN
SMITH ANDERSON

Wendy-Ann Smith Anderson joined the LAB in August 2023 in the capacity of Chief 
Financial Officer. In this role, she is responsible for the overall financial management 
of the company, including accounting, financial planning and analysis, auditing, 
budgeting, treasury management and financial reporting in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards(IFRS). 

Her career spans over 15 years in accounting and financial management. Prior 
to joining The Limners Bards Limited, Wendy-Ann was a Finance &  Compliance 
Manager at Guardsman Group Limited and then a Financial Controller at Digicel 
Group. She holds an Msc. in Accounting from the Mona School of Business and 
Management, University of the West Indies.

+ CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

TASHARA-LEE
JOHNSON

Tashara-Lee Johnson is an experienced Film Producer with a demonstrated history of working 
in Advertising and Media Production. She is the Chief Operating Officer of The LAB and has 
been with the company for over 7 years. In her role, Tashara-Lee manages the day to day 
operations and plays a key role in the strategic growth of the company. She holds a bachelor’s 
degree in Media & Communication with a minor in International Relations from The University 
of the West Indies (Mona), and has completed a course in Leadership at the Jack Welch 
Management Institute. Having served primarily in production management roles in previous 
jobs, Tashara-Lee has extensive international experience with campaigns, commercials, feature 
films, and documentaries. Some of these include “King of the Dancehall” by Nick Cannon, 
“Hooked” by Max Emerson, “Flight” by Kia Moses, and “OTR II” by Beyonce and Jay-Z. She 
recently represented Jamaica at the Black Women Film Network Festival (Atlanta), Cannes 
Film Festival (France) and The American Black Film Festival (Miami) as the producer of “Flight” 
which copped several top awards. She has also expanded her skillset veering into teaching 
as a project lecturer for CARIMAC and the OECS’ joint Script Writing and Film Production 
Programme.
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+ HEAD OF CLIENT SERVICES

KIMBERLEY
ADAMSON

Kimberley Adamson, our distinguished Head of Client Services, boasting an impressive 
16-year journey in production, project management, and marketing. A visionary leader, 
Kimberley seamlessly fuses strategic acumen with creative finesse, steering our agency 
toward unparalleled success.

With a superpower in orchestrating end-to-end marketing campaigns, Kimberley is 
not merely a practitioner but an architect of transformative client experiences. Beyond 
delivering exceptional results, she specialises in building and nurturing client relationships, 
crafting bonds that endure. Her innovative approach extends to delivering solutions 
clients never knew they needed, propelling brands beyond conventional success into 
realms of sustained influence.

+ PEOPLE OPERATIONS MANAGER

RENEE
COLE

Renee’ Cole possesses over a decade of experience as an HR Practitioner. A graduate of the 
University of Technology, Jamaica, she holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree 
with a focus on Human Resource Management (HRM) and a minor in International Business. 
Additionally, she earned an MBA with Distinction, specializing in HRM, from the Mona School 
of Business & Management. With a strong background in HR management, she possesses 
a unique blend of skills that contribute to fostering a positive workplace culture and driving 
employee engagement.
Throughout her career, she has held diverse HR roles in sectors such as Health, Retail, Sales 
& Distribution, ICT, and Insurance. She joined The LAB team in May 2023 as the People 
Operations Manager. She has served as a guest lecturer in Human Resource Management as 
she finds genuine satisfaction in empowering others through the avenue of education.With 
a passion for cultivating a workplace where employees thrive, Renee’ stands as a dedicated 
HR professional ready to leverage her skills and experience to drive organisational success.
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+ CREATIVE DIRECTOR (CONSULTING)

DEXTER
MUSGRAVE

Dexter Musgrave has over 15 years of experience with brands in the Caribbean 
and Diaspora markets. He has executed campaigns for brands like Nestle, RBC 
Trinidad and Tobago, Digicel Caribbean, LIAT Airlines, NCB Jamaica, The Cable 
St. Kitts, Mazda Miami, Berger Paints Regional GT&T Guyana and many more. 

Having worked with McCann Erickson Trinidad, Publicis Caribbean, VMLY&R 
Miami, OGM St. Lucia, OPEN INTERACTIVE St Kitts, and The LAB Jamaica, he 
has an acute understanding of Caribbean markets. A true brand storyteller, he 
prides himself is leading creative teams whose goal is to create work that works. 

+ HEAD OF MEDIA & INNOVATION

ANTHONEY
WHYTE

Anthoney Whyte boasts over a decade of experience as a Media Strategist, 
offering a unique blend of expertise in computer engineering along with 
certifications in Digital and Traditional Marketing. His professional journey 
is defined by hands-on experience and a substantial knowledge base, 
empowering him to adeptly navigate the swiftly evolving media landscape.

He has played  a crucial role in steering teams to success and leaving an 
enduring impact on notable brands, including Nestle, Campari Group, 
Digicel, National Commercial Bank, Payless, and GlaxoSmithKline.
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+ ASSOCIATE CREATIVE DIRECTOR

JOLEEN
TOMLINSON

Joleen Tomlinson immersed herself in the world of translation and EFL teaching 
between Jamaica, Colombia, and Japan for seven years. Joleen holds a B.A. in 
Entertainment and Cultural Enterprise Management with first class honours from UWI, 
Mona, and is fluent in Spanish. Over the past five (5) years, she has successfully parlayed 
her expertise into the field of advertising where she has worked as a Copywriter and 
now Creative Lead and Strategist. 
A strategic thinker and problem solver, Joleen translates complex ideas into creative 
storytelling that drives conversion for brands such as NCB, Digicel, Wray and Nephew, 
Grace Kennedy, Magnum, Kingston 62 and several others. As a bilingual Creative, 
Joleen has allowed the LAB to explore business opportunities in the Latin American 
and Caribbean (LACA) region by interpreting meetings with prospective clients.
. 

+ CREATIVE OPERATIONS MANAGER

SANJA
JACKSON

Sanja  Jackson  is a seasoned business management professional 
with over 12 years of experience in project management, marketing, 
advertising and process improvement. A true maestro in orchestrating 
seamless project workflows, she thrives on optimising creative processes 
and aligning creative vision with strategic objectives. 

She uses her meticulous attention to detail, strategic vision, and 
unparalleled ability to turn creative chaos into cohesive brilliance to help 
brands achieve goals and stay ahead in the race for consumer attention 
and loyalty by assigning the right execution team.
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+ POST PRODUCTION MANAGER

COLLEEN
CORKE-CAMPBELL

Colleen Corke-Campbell is a driven and accomplished professional with a flair for 
entertainment and cultural enterprise management.
With a first class honours degree from the University of the West Indies, she 
started her career in event management and production but later transitioned to 
advertising and marketing as an account executive with The Limners and Bards 
Limited. Her passion for audio production led to the role managing the post 
production team.

Over the past two years, she’s overseen the successful installation of a new 
server, improved workflow, and implemented several software programs to 
increase efficiency. She is grounded by her personal philosophy of Ubuntu, which 
emphasises the power of community and the importance of working together.
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The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for The Limners and Bards Limited (The 
LAB), should be read in conjunction with the Historical Financial Data set out elsewhere in this 
Annual Report.

THE COMPANY
The LAB is a full-service and fully integrated advertising agency and film production company. 
We provide services to our clients through four main business segments: Production, Agency, 
Media, Content, and one subsidiary, Scope Caribbean. We currently have clients across several 
sectors including telecommunications, financial services, food & beverage, gaming and sports, 
government, education, and non-profit industries. On July 28, 2019, we became the first 
advertising agency and film production company to be listed on the Junior Market of the 
Jamaica Stock Exchange (JMJSE) after a successful IPO that opened and closed on July 17, 
2019. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the financial year ending October 2023, revenue and 
net profits declined by 16.4% and 60.2% respectively. 
Shareholder equity, however, increased by $23.5 million 
to $597.8 million, up from $574.3 million year over year 
and return on average equity delivered to shareholders 
was 9.8%.

REVENUE
During the year 2023, we generated revenues 
amounting to $1.1 billion, down 16.4% relative to 
the prior year. This decline was primarily attributable 
to changing customer advertising spending patterns 
within the context of the macroeconomic conditions. 
The revenue was achieved from the company’s core 
business lines; Media ($672.9 million), Production 
($296.0 million), and Agency ($155.7 million).

PROFITABILITY
Gross profit decreased by 18% or $85.3 million relative 
to the previous year. Our net profit declined by 60.2% 
or $86.7 million than the previous year. Return on 
equity for the year was 9.6% and earnings per share 
decreased from $0.15 to $0.06.

TOTAL ASSETS
The statement of financial position reflects an increase 
in total assets to $917.5 million from $892 million or 
2.9% higher than the prior year.

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Total liabilities grew from $317.7 million in the previous 
year to $319.7 million in the current year.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS
We are pleased to advise that on December 28, 2022, 
our Board of Directors approved a final ordinary 
dividend for 2021/2022 of $0.0065 per share and a 
Special Dividend of $0.0304 per share. These payments 
were made on January 31, 2023, to all shareholders on 
record as of January 13, 2023.
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OUTLOOK
In the face of challenging market conditions characteriSed 
by macroeconomic downturns and shifting client priorities 
post-pandemic, The LAB maintained resilience and 
adaptability, albeit experiencing a decline in revenue for 
the fiscal year ending October 31, 2023. Despite a 16.4% 
reduction in total revenue relative to the previous period, 
(amounting to $1.1 billion), The LAB sustained a robust 
financial position with a healthy cash reserve.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue contraction was primarily attributed to decreased 
client spend and heightened administrative costs. The 
LAB’s revenue streams, derived from core business lines, 
demonstrated resilience: Media accounted for $672.9 
million, Production for $296.0 million, and Agency for 
$155.7 million. Reinvestment in the business bolstered the 
asset base, with strategic acquisitions of state-of-the-art 
equipment and enhancements to studio facilities and team 
capacity.

SEVEN YEAR REVENUE TREND
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STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
In response to evolving market dynamics, The LAB embarked 
on several strategic initiatives to fortify its position as a 
leading Caribbean content creator and expand revenue 
streams. These initiatives are characterized by proactive 
engagement and forward-looking strategies:

CONTENT DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION
The LAB prioritised the development of original content 
across various mediums, including TV/web series and 
feature films. Notably, successful pilots for “SEEN” and 
“Jenna In Law” have been completed, with pre-production 
underway for the feature film “Love Offside.” Concurrently, 
the company is actively engaging international networks 
and digital streaming platforms to secure distribution 
opportunities upon production completion. By leveraging 
these partnerships, The LAB aims to ensure that its creative 
endeavours reach global audiences, thus enhancing brand 
visibility and revenue potential.

TROLLEY ADVERTISING EXPANSION
The LAB’s commitment to trolley advertising remains 
steadfast, with significant strides made towards achieving 
80% utilisation by the end of the second quarter. This 
innovative marketing initiative involves installing double-
sided frames on supermarket shopping carts, allowing for 

targeted brand exposure throughout consumers’ shopping 
journeys. With 900 trolleys already deployed across four 
supermarkets and negotiations underway for further 
expansion

AGENCY EXPANSION AND CLIENT ACQUISITION
Through its Agency arm, The LAB is actively exploring 
new opportunities for client acquisition in regional and 
international markets. The company aims to augment 
revenue streams and capitalise on emerging market trends 
by diversifying its clientele and expanding beyond Jamaican 
projects. The growing demand for video equipment and 
studio space rental presents lucrative opportunities for 
revenue generation, particularly as Jamaica gains traction 
as a filming destination. By strategically positioning itself to 
meet this demand, The LAB is poised to capture a larger 
share of the market and drive sustained growth.

INVESTMENT IN INFRASTRUCTURE AND TALENT
Recognising the importance of infrastructure and talent 
development, The LAB continues to invest in state-of-the-
art equipment and studio facilities. These investments not 
only enhance production capabilities but also enable the 
company to attract top talent and foster creativity and 
innovation. By providing a conducive environment for talent 
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development and experimentation, The LAB strengthens its 
competitive edge and positions itself for long-term success 
in the dynamic media landscape.

By executing these strategic initiatives with precision 
and foresight, The LAB is poised to navigate challenges 
effectively, capitalise on emerging opportunities, and drive 
sustainable growth and value creation for its stakeholders.

RISK MITIGATION
Proactive risk mitigation strategies are being implemented to 
navigate market uncertainties. A balanced finance approach 
prioritises cost containment and strategic investment, 
ensuring sustainable growth. Emphasis on development, 
training, and innovation fortifies The LAB’s competitive 
edge thus positioning the company for long-term success.

The LAB’s commitment to development and training ensures 
that its team remains agile and adaptable to industry trends 
and technological advancements. By fostering a culture of 
innovation, the company continuously seeks opportunities 
to differentiate its offerings. This strategic focus on talent 
development and creativity further strengthens The LAB’s 
position in the market and reinforces its ability to deliver high-
quality content that resonates with audiences worldwide.
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During 2023, The LAB’s theme of Playing to Win, New 
Roads Ahead guided our efforts in people engagement, 
driving innovation, and growth and development. The 
company started the year by celebrating its 15th Anniversary 
and realigning our strategic vision in our annual staff retreat 
and ‘Kick-Off’. Team engagement and motivation were 
paramount, and the year provided greater opportunities for 
collaboration in various activities to boost staff engagement 
as the company accelerates its presence in film production 
and distribution. 

The company maintained its staple activities to boost staff 
engagement, such as Spirit Week, the annual Christmas 
Party and gift exchange. The company also hosted an 
Innovation Challenge and Creative Team meetings to foster 
greater participation of staff in developing and producing 
new ideas and concepts for production all while delivering 
high quality service to our clients. Team LAB’s commitment 
to industry-leading innovation and quality is evidenced in 
being awarded the American Advertising Award (ADDY) for 
Best Integrated Campaign in 2023. 

Investing in training, leadership development, staff 
exchanges and mentorships signalled a commitment to our 
most important asset, our people. We celebrated successes, 
showcased achievements, and recognized performance. 
The company invested in providing support for our people, 
with resources to create systems that attract, develop, 
retain and reward our team. Employee contributions drive 
our innovation, and the company provides opportunities for 
staff to make pitches and suggestions that are developed 
into further projects. 

The team’s ability to adapt and elevate the creative output 
is testament to their resilience and dedication. Their 
unwavering pursuit of excellence is indicative of their 
willingness and readiness to increase locally created content 
for distribution in wider markets. The cooperative, integrated 
efforts that the company continues to strengthen and 
maintain reinforce our desire to explore new roads, create 
meaningful experiences, foster conducive environments for 
our team, and chart exciting new creative frontiers for our 
clients. 
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The LAB provided diverse opportunities to strengthen the 
capacity of its staff during the year. In keeping with our 
strategic mission to increase our Production and Content 
business lines, the training initiatives were robust and 
focused on increased technical training in these areas to 
drive innovation and growth. 

The training initiatives sought to further unlock and 
unleash the creative potential of our employees, to foster 
an incubator for dynamism as the team reimagines WOW 
content for our clients. Snapshots of the training activities 
for 2023 include: 

1.	 Screenwriting Workshop
The team completed an intensive programme that 
provided guidance and know-how on developing story 
ideas into feature-length screenplays.

2.	 Film and TV Workshop “Entertainment Finance, 
Production and Distribution”
This session provided a deeper dive in writing, shooting, 
directing, and editing films as well as developing an 
understanding of a wide variety of financial models for 
funding and distributing entertainment projects.

3.	 Staff Company Exchange
A member of staff participated in an intensive 8-week 
exchange programme to further strengthen our 
production and content creation capabilities.
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As a high-performance team of Caribbean Creators with a goal to produce impact-driven  ideas, 
content and entertainment, regional and global recognition is a key marker for measuring 
success. The American Advertising Awards represents one such avenue of validation for The 
LAB - as the “ADDY” Awards is the industry’s most comprehensive and prestigious competition 
recognising creative excellence in advertising.

Thirty-four (34) companies from six (6) island nations in the Caribbean submitted more than 
552 entries to be judged as the top creative executions for 2022. In the midst of such stiff 
competition, The LAB was able to secure the coveted American Advertising Award (ADDY) for 
Best Integrated Campaign with the J.Wray & Nephew Jamaica Reignite Your Spirit campaign, 
in celebration of Jamaica’s 60th year of independence.  We also obtained a Silver ADDY for 
our work on the Nova McDonald Herself Masterclass in the Online Interactive cross Platform 
Campaign category.
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1-5 	 Scenes from the Special Annual Kickoff with our team held on November 18, 2022
6  	 Directors share a moment with the team from Alliance Cinema out of Los Angeles at our Annual General Meeting
7-9 	 Scenes from our Annual Christmas Party and Gift Exchange themed Wakanda Forever
10 	 Illustrator Johnathon presents Baby Cham with his custom caricature 
11 	 Celebrating our 15th Anniversary
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1	 Expedia | Wisdom & Obi
2	 Mailpac Annual Report
3	 KFC A Wing is a Win
4	 Pizza Hut We Know Pepperoni
5	 Lynk Live Your Best Life Summer
6 	 Repair Reparations Web Project

7	 Grace Mackerel Best Taste
8	 GKMS Western Union 10 Million Reasons
9	 JP St Mary’s Nuh Crumbs
10	 Project Star Everybody Faawud
11	 NCB Seize the Summer
12 	 Grace Tropical Rythms New Tetra Pack
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During the year, The LAB continued supporting several outreach and educational 
programmes. By extending assistance through cash, kind and talent development, 
the company reaffirmed its commitment to adopting a holistic approach to 
supporting social causes to make a positive impact and foster positive change. 

Some of the project highlights during 2023 were:

1. Annual Internship Programme 
An internship programme was offered to students pursuing courses of study in 
the creative field. It continues to offer real-world experience for aspiring creatives, 
while enabling The LAB to identify new talent in the next generation of creatives. 

2. Good Samaritan Home Donation Drive
The company’s initiative to organise a monthly drive to support the residents of 
the Good Samaritan Home, (which began during the Covid-19 pandemic), remains 
strong and is growing. Providing bi-monthly care packages along with our annual 
visit to fellowship with the residents has further strengthened The LAB’s relationship 
with the community. 
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HALL, WILSOI\ & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOt:NTANTS 
KII\GSTON, JAMAICA. W.I .  

INDEPENDENT AUDlTOR'S REPOKT 

To the Member:s of 
THC LlM'lERS AN[) RA RDS LIMITl:l) 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

52b MOLYNES ROAD 
K II\CSTON I U  
TF.LEPIIOI\ le :  (876) 678-401 1 

(87/i) 678-40 12  

We have audited the financial statements of The Limners And Bard� Limited C'the Company") and the 
t.:onsolidated financial statements of the Company ;md its sL1bsidirn11 (the Group) set out on pages 5 to 3 1 .  
which comprise the- statemelll o l  ri rtanda[ position of the UrOllp and the Company a, at Oe-tober 3 1 .  2023, the 
Group and Com pan}· s1alerncnts of profit or loss and other t.:umprehensive income. the Group and Company 
statt:mt!nls of changes in equity ancl C(!Sh flows for the year tl"1t!n ended, and notes. comprbing significant 
accounting policies and otller explanatory information. In 011r opinion, the accompanying consolidated and 
stand - alone tinancial statcmcnt3 give a true and fair vicv.· of the financial positiot1 of the Group w1d 
Company as at October 3 1 .  2023. am.I of its consolidated and stand - alone financial p�rformancc and cash 
flows for th� year then ended in accordance. v • .-ith International I· inam;ial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the 
Jamaican Companies Act. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our aud it in w.:curdunc� with International Stanclar(1� on Audi t ing (ISAs). Our responsibil ities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit <4 Financ:ial 
Statements section of our report. We .ire indept:ndcnt of the Group and Company in accordance with the 
lnlematiunal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Pro fessional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) and we have fulfil led our other ethical respu11s i bi l i tie!i in accordance \.Vith the IESRA Code. 'Ne 
believt'! that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient a11d 3ppropriate to provide a bas i s  fur our 
opinion. 

Key Audi1 Mauers 

Key audit matters are those malters. that i n  our pmtess ional judgment were of rnusl significance in our audit 
of ihe financial statements of the current period. The matter wru:i ad<lr�scd in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a \.vholc and in funning our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on this matter. No key audit matter \Vas determined, 

Other information 

Management is responsible for the or.her information. The other information comprises the infom1ation 
included in the annual report bul does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
The annual report is expected to be made available to u.s after the date or thi, auditor', report .  

Our opinion on  the c.unsol idatcd and stand - alone financial stat�rncnts does not cover the other information 
and we wi l l  not express any fonn of assurance conclu�ion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consol i dated and stand - alone tinanc- ia l  srntcments, our responsibi lity is to 
�a<l the other information identifi�d abovt: \vhen it becomes avail:.1ble and in doing so. consider whether the 
other infonnation is materiallv inconsistent with the consolidated and stand - alone financial �tatcrnents or 
011r kno\vled1?,e obtained in the"° audit, or othcrv,:ise appe::irs to be rn::iterial ly misstated. 

HALL, WILSO"I & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUl\TANTS 
KINGSTON, JAMAICA, W.1. 

!�DEPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPOKT (CONTJNUELJ) 

To the Members of 
THE l ,IMNERS AND BAROS LIMITCD 

Report on the Audit of the Financial SUtfo.mcnt.c. (continued) 

Other information (conlimwd) 

52b MOLY'.'IF.S ROAD 
KINGSTON 1 0  
Tl::LEPHONE: (876) 67R-40 l l  

(876) 678-401 2 

When we read the ann1.1al report, if we concl ude that there is a mal.eri.al m isstatement therein. we arc required 
to communicate th,: matter to those charged wirh governance. 

Re.;,pv,,1sibililies o
f

,tfa1wgemcnt and the Board uf Direclorsf0r the Fi11ancia! Statemenls 

Management is responsible for the prnparation of the consoli<.Jated .:md �tand - alone financial statements that 
give a true llnd fair vi�"' in accordance with IFRS and the .Jamaican Companies Act, and for s�ch internal 
contrcl .JS management determines i.s necessary ro enable the preparation of the consolidated and .stm1d -
alone financiul statemenrs that are free t�om material misstatcmc.nt, \:\.:heth�r due to fraud or error. 

In prcparif�g the consolidated and srnnd - alone financial statemcnB
1 

management is rcsrc,nsible for �::,essir.g 
lhe Grc•up and the Company·:; abi l i ty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related 
to going concern and u.Sing the going cunc.crn basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
l iquidate the Grour or the Company or to cease operalions, or has no realistic al ternative but to do so. The 
Ooard of Dlrcctors is responsible for overseeing the. Group and the Company·s  financial reporting process. 

Auditor ·s Responsibilitie:-;fvr the Audit Qf the Fimmcial Statements 

Our objective::; urc to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the conso l idated and stand - alone financi;.:il 
:>lult:mcnts as � whole are free from material misstatement. wherher due to fraud or error. an<.l lo issue ar, 
auditor1s report lhat includes OlJr opinion. Rca'ionahle assurance is a high level of assur�nce, htit is not a 
guanmt"e that an audir conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detet.:t a material m isstatemen1 wht:n it 
c-xi'it�. rvtisstate1mmts can ari!,e from fr.iud or error and are consi<l�rt�d material if. individually or in the 
aggreg�te, they could 1 easonably be expected to i ntluenct: the ccon-1mic decisions of u::,crs taken �n ihe Odsis 
ofthc.sc financial stakments. 

As part of an audit in itccordancc ,0vith JSAs. we exercise profess ional judgment and maintain profo�sional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess rile risks of m,1teria.l mi�stateinent of the group and stand - alone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or· error. design and perform audit pr04,;e<lures respom,ivc to those 
risks. and obtain audit evide11ct: that is  suftic.icnt and approprictl� to provide a basis for our upinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material m isstal.einenl resulting from fraud i s  higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intenti11nal omissions, misrcprcsc11ta1ions1 or lhc 
override of i ntcrnfll controL 

Oblain an understa11di1,g of internal control relevant to the audit in order Lo dcsig11 audit procedurn:-j 
that Me appropriate in the circumstances, bu( nut fur the pt.1rpose of expressing an upinion on the 
effectiveness of the Compan;··s internal control . 
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HALL, WILSOI\ & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOVNTAI\TS 
Kl�GSTON, JAMAICA. W.I. 

INDt:l't:NDE�T A\IDITUK'S REPORT (CONIINUED) 

To the Members of 
THF LIMNlRS AND RARDS u:vtlTEO 

Rcpo1t on tht! Audit of the Finao('ial Stntcmeuts (continued) 

Audito1 •., Responsibilities/or the Audu o/rhe J,fooncial Statements (crmlinued) 

52b MOLYNES ROAD 
Kli\'GSTON 10 
TF.1.F.PIIO,\E: (876) 678-4011 

(876) 678-4012 

Obtain a11 understanding of inh::mal control relevant to the audit in orU�r to design audit procedure� 
that are appropriate in the circumstance� but not for the purpo� of exprc:.-sing an opinion on the 
ctfoctiveness of the Compan} ·s internill control. 

Evaluale tl1e appropriateness of accounting polici�s used and the re�tsonablencss of accovnting 
estimatt!S and relaxed disclosure� made hy management 

Com;ludc on the appropriak11t::)� of managt:menr s use of the going concern ha.sis of �u.:-..:uuming and, 
based on the audit evidence nbt�ined. whi.::thcr a mmi::rial unce11ainty exists related to events or 
condition, that may cast significant douhr 0t1 the Group and Company's ability to continue as a gou,g 
concern. If \'ve cunclude that a material unccnaint� exists, we arc required lo draw ancntion in our 
auditor's r�port to the related disclosures in the finandal statements or. if such disclosur�.:-, ;ire 
inadeqLmte: to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hascd on the uudit evidence obmine<l up to 
the datt of our auditor's report. 1 lowever, future eveuts or conditions mn)' cau!;c the Group and 
Company to cea"e to continue as n going concern. 

L:valuate the overall rresentation, structure and content of the consolidated an<l stand - alone financial 
�tatcmcnts, including the disclosures, arid whether lhc consolidat�d and stand - alone linancinl 
5tatemcnts reprt:,cnt the underl)·ing transactions and e'venls in a manner that pre�ub a lrue and fair 
,ic""· 

Ohtai11 sufficienl uppropriate audit �vidence regarding the financial infomrn1ion of the:: '-.!nlities or 
business activities within the Uroup to express an opinion on the con.-.olidal� financial statement�. 
We are responsible for the direction. �upcrvision and performance of the Group audit. We remain 
�oltdy responsihle for our audit opinion. 

\Ve communicate with the Board of lJirtctors regarding. among othc;r maners, the planned .scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit tindillgs, including. an� significant dcficiencie.� in internal control that wt:: 
idcntif)• during our audit. 

V•./c also provitltd the Hoard of Directors with a statement tlu1.t ,,·e have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and tu communicate with them all relationshi� and other matt� that 
muy reasonably be thought 10 bear on our i11dependence. and where applicable, related safeguards. 

HALL, WILSON & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTA�TS 
KINGSTON, JAMAICA, W.I. 

TNDEl'll:SDENT AUDITUK'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

To the Members of 
THF. LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

52b .\10LYNES RO:\D 
Kl:\C;STO:\ 10 
TELF:PIIO'<F:: (876) 678-4011 

(876) 678-4012 

From the ma11en; communicated \-',·ith the Hoard of Dire<.:lOrs. we determine those matters that ""ere of mnst 
significanc� in the audit of the consolidated rimmcial statements or tht" current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. Wt describe thest! nrntters in our auditor's repon unless la\'-' or regulation preclude� public 
disclosu� ubout the matters or when. in cxt�rnel)' rare circumstance;:,, we derermine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse l·onscquencts of doing so would reasonably he expeckd 
to outweigh the public interc.,t benefits of such com111unicn1ion. 

Rtport on addHionnl matter� 3S requirtd by the .Jamaican Companie., Act 

\Ve have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the b�st of our know ledgt: and bcliet: were 
necessary for thi: purposes of our audit. In our opinion. proper a<.:counting records l1ave OOen maintained. so 
far as appear, from our e'8mination of those records, and the consolidated and stand - alone financial 
�talerncnts. which Hre in agrt::tmcnt there,"ith. give the infom,ation required by the Jamaican Companies Act, 
in the manner rt:1.Juircd. 

The cngagemem partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Wilr.eld St. P. Hall. 

J-L-...Ll 0�4., ..... �a..v,,.c,.,;;t'i-
Char1ered Accountants 
Uecembcr 28, 202) 
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Tl-IE LJMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 

Statement of Financial Position 
At October 31, 2023 

Non - cun-ent assets 

Prope1ty, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Right - of - use asset 
Investment in subsidiary 
Investment 

Current assets 

Due from related parties 
Accounts receivable 
Taxation recoverable 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Tota I assets 

Shareholders' equity 

Share capital 
Retained earnings 

Non - cu1Tent liabilities 

Long - tenn loans 
Long - term lease liability 

Cunem liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrned charges 
Current maturity of long - term loans 
Current maturity oflease liability 

Total equity and liabilities 

Notes 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

IO 
11 

12 

13 

14 
6 

15 
14 
6 

9 

2023 2022 
s. 

83,293,299 71,899,602 
2,931,087 4,482,543 

85,680,227 91,033,435 
15,000,000 15,000,000 

343 833 408 302 

187.248 446 182 823 882 

3,702,888 8,997,186 
371,439,094 352,763,356 

9,274,619 6,328.917 
356.687,752 350.139 459 

741.104,353 718.228 918 

21Ji,3�52,1�2 20J,Q52,800 

178,941,261 178,941,261 
430,309,260 404 471 571 

609.250 521 583.412,832 

13,120,625 7,592,966 
92 499 897 95,469,761 

105.620,522 103,062,727 

201,145,013 210,926,328 
9,527.644 1,438.578 
2.809.099 2.212,335 

213.481,756 214 577 241 

22_8_,152.122 20lfilZ.�'illQ 

The financial statements on pages 9 to 31 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on December 28, 
2023 and signed on its behalf by: 

Steven Gooden 
Chairman 

Kimala Bennett 
Chief Executive Officer 

THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 10 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
Year ended October 31 2023 

Notes 2023 2022 
s. 

Operating revenue 16 I, 126,025,630 1,344,465,557 

Cost of operating revenue 739 391.494) 873,042,370) 

Gross profit 386,634, 136 471,423,187 

Profit on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 6,865,545 930 934 

393,499,681 472,354,121 

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses: 17 

Administration expenses 334,079,420) 309,644,334) 

Selling and distribution 2,104,907) 517 967) 

336 184 327) 310 162 301) 

lmpainnent losses on financial assets 17 82.479) 4,602 155) 

Profit before net finance income/(cost) and taxation 57,232,875 157,589,665 

Finance income 13,554,460 7,011,882 

Finance cost 11.111.529) 17.556,276) 

Net finance income/(cost) 18 2 442 931 I 0.544,394) 

59,675,806 147,045,271 

Loss in value of investments classified as FVTPL 64.469) 69 841) 

Profit before taxation 59,611,337 146,975,430 

Taxation 19 

Net profit being total comprehensive 
income for the year 59 611 337 146 975 430 
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THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year ended October 31 2023 

Balance at October 3 I, 2021 
Dividends 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Balance at October 31, 2022 

Dividends [Note 21] 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Balance at October 31, 2023 

Share 
capital 

l 

178,941,261 

178,941,261 

H8.,2.4 L2JiJ. 

11 

Retained 
earnings Total 

l 1 

342,930,064 521,871,325 
( 85,433,923) ( 85,433,923) 
146,975 430 146 975 430 
404,471,571 583,412,832 

( 33,773,648) ( 33,773,648) 
59 611.337 59.61 l 337 

4 :rn.3!l.22fill fill2.,25Jl.52J. 

THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year ended October 3 I 2023 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVlTIES 
Net profit for the year 
Adjustments to reconcile net profit for the year 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss on investment 
Profit on disposal ofprope11y, plant and equipment 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Working capital components: 
Due from related parties 
Accounts receivable 
Due to related party 
Accounts payable and accrued charges 

Cash provided by operating activities 
Interest paid 
Tax paid/deducted at source 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Addition to prope1iy, plant and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANClNG ACTIVlTIES 

Payment of lease liability - principal portion 
Long - tenn loans, net 
Dividends paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at sta11 of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2023 
l 

59,611,337 

23,914,393 
64,469 

6,865,545) 
10,565,957) 
8 831 647 

74,990,344 

5,294.298 
18,784,014) 

9 781.316) 
51,719,313 

( 8,831,648) 
( 2 945 702) 

39 941 963 

10,674,234 
9,044,000 

( 30 581.881) 
( 10.863.647) 

( 2,373,100) 
13,616,725 

( 33.773.648) 

( 22 530 023) 
6,548,293 

350 139 459 

3.5fl.68.225..2. 

12 

2022 
1 

146,975,430 

21,274, l 23 
69,841 

930,934) 
7,01 l,882} 
9.105 229 

169 ,48 l ,807 

( 8,997.186) 
(129,167,171} 
( 55,473) 

30.481 863 
61,743,840 

( 9,105,229} 
( 103 196} 

52.535 415 

5,650,630 
1,162,500 

( 28 929 519) 
( 22 l 16 389} 

( 2,032,665) 
( 1,342,997) 
( 85.433.923) 

( 88.809 585) 
( 58,390,559) 
408.530 018 

3.5Q.J.J.2.A52 

� 
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TI-IE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 13 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

I. 

2. 

Corporate structure and nature of business 

The company is incorporated in Jamaica under the Companies Act and is domiciled in .Jamaica. The 
registered office of the company and its principal place of business is situated at Unit # 4, 69 - 75 
Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10. 
The company was re - registered as a public company by resolution passed at an extraordinary general 
meeting held on February 25, 2019 and its shares were listed on the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock 
Exchange on July 26, 2019. 
The principal activities of the company are production, media and is an advertising agency. 

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance: 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) and comply with the provisions of the Companies Act. 

Certain new and amended standards that were in issue came into effect during the current 
financial year. The company has assessed the relevance of all such new standards, interpretations 
and amendments and has adopted the following, which are relevant to its operations: 

Amendments to JAS 16 'propert;v, plan/ and equipment (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January I, 2022). This amendment prohibits an entity from deducting 
from cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds received from selling 
items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Entities must 
disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not 
au output of the entity's ordinmy activities. 

• Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after Janumy 1, 2022). IFRS 9, 'Fi11a11cial Ins/rumen ts' clarifies which fees an entity 
includes when it applies the I 0% test in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. 

The adoption of these amendments did not have a significant impact on the company. 
New standards, interpretations and amendments to standards in issue but not yet effective: 

• Amendments to !AS I 'Presentation of fi11a11cial statements' (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January I, 2024). These amendments to !AS I, 'Presentation of financial 
statements', clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non - current, depending 
on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting date. An entity classifies a liability as non -
cul1'ent if it has a right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 
The amendment also clarified that a right to defer exists only if the entity is in compliance 
with conditions specified in the loan agreement at the repo1ting date, even if the lender does 
not test compliance until a later date. The adoption of these amendments is not expected to 
have a significant impact Oil the group. 

• Narrow scope amendments to !AS I Prese11tatio11 of statement (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after Janumy 1, 2023 and may be applied earlier. The amendments help 
entities provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments include, requiring 
entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies; clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other than 
events or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and; 
clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or 
conditions are themselves material to the company's financial statements. The adoption of 
these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on the group. 

� 
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TI-IE LIMNERS & BARDS LIMITED 14 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (continued) 

New and amended standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted(continued): 

• Amendments to !AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
( effective for annual periods beginning Oil or after January I, 2023, with early adoption 
permitted). The amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates: clarifying 
that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement 
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The adoption of 
these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on the group. 

• Amendments to /AS 12 Income tax (effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janua1y 
1, 2023, with early adoption pennitted). The amendments require entities to recognize 
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable 
and deductible temporary differences. The adoption of these amendments is not expected to 
have a significant impact on the group. 

The group is assessing the impact of future adoption of the amendments on its financial 
statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation: 

The financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars (J$), which is the functional cmrency 
of the company. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, 
except for the inclusion of investments classified as fair value through profit or loss canied al fair 
value. 

(c) Basis of consolidation: 
Subsidiaries 
A subsidimy is an entity controlled by the company. Control exists when the company has power, 
directly and indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are 
exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The company may have power over an entity 
even when it holds no ownership interest in the entity, or when it holds less than a majority of 
voting power in the entity. In such cases, the company exercises judgment and assesses its power 
to direct the relevant activities of the entity, as well as its voting rights relative to the size and 
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders to determine if it has de-facto power over the 
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control commences until the date that 
control ceases. 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between 
group companies are eliminated on consolidation. In the company's separate financial statements, 
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost Jess impairment. 

(d) Use of estimates and judgement: 

The preparation of the financial statements to conform to ffRS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, contingent 
assets and contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position date, and the income and 
expenses for the year then ended. Actual amounts could differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountmg 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the 
revision affects both cunent and future periods. 
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THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 15 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 3 I 2023 

2. 

3. 

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation ( continued) 

(d) Use of estimates and judgement (continued): 
Judgements made by management in the application of lFRS that have a significant effect on the 
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next 
financial year are discussed below. 
(i) Financial assets: 

For the pu1pose of these financial statements, judgment refers to the informed identification 
and analysis of reasonable alternatives, considering all relevant facts and circumstances, 
and well - reasoned, objective and unbiased choice of the alternative that is most consistent 
with the agreed principles set out in IFRS. The key relevant judgements are as follows: 

I. 

2. 

Classification of financial assets: 
The assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and 
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial assets are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding 
requires management to make certain judgements on its business operations. 
lmpainnent of financial assets: 
Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for 
incorporating forward - looking infonnation into measurement of expected credit 
loss (ECL) and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL requires 
significant judgement. 
Allowance for impairment losses: 
In detem1ining amounts recorded for impainnent of financial assets in the financial 
statements, management makes assumptions in determining the inputs to be used in 
the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of forward - looking 
information. Management also estimates the likely amount of cash flows recoverable 
on the financial assets in detennining loss given default. The use of assumptions 
make uncertainty inherent in such estimates. 

(ii) Residual value and expected useful life of property, plant and equipment: 

The residual value and the expected useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each 
financial year end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is 
accounted for. The usefol life of an asset is defined in terms of the asset's expected utility 
to the company. 

Significant accounting policies 

(a) Prnpcrty, plant and equipment: 

(i) Items or property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The 
cost of self- constrnctcd assets includes the cost of material and direct labour and any other 
costs directly attTibutable to bringing the assets to a working condition for its intended use. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised 
as part of that equipment. 

THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 16 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 3 I 2023 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued): 
(ii) Depreciation: 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at annual rates 
estimated to write off the assets over their expected useful lives. The depreciation rates are 
as follows: 
Equipment, furniture, fixtures and building improvements 
Building 
Computers and motor vehicles 

10% 
5% 

20% 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually. 

(b) Intangible assets - computer software: 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire 
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over the estimated useful life of 
five (5) years for the software on a straight - line basis. 
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as 
expenses as incuned. 

(c) Accounts receivable: 
Accounts receivable is stated at amortised cost less impairment losses. 

( d) Related parties: 

A party is related to the company, it: 
(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party: 

(a) is controlled by, or is under common control with the company; 
(b) has a direct or indirect interest in the company that gives it significant influence; or 
(c) has joint control overthe company; 

(ii) the party is an associate of the company; 
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the company is a venturer; 
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the company; 
(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual refened to in (i) or (iv); 
(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or 

for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any 
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or 

(vii) the patty is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the company, or 
of any entity that is a related party of the company. 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related 
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. The company has a related party relationship 
with its directors and key management personnel, representing certain senior officers of the 
company. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances including short-term deposits and 
other monetary investments with maturities ranging between one and three months from the date 
of statement of financial position. Bank overdrafts, repayable on demand and forming an integral 
part of the company's cash management activities, are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 
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THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 17 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

( I) Accounts payable: 
Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost. 

(g) Borrowings: 
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incuned. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, interest - bearing bo1TOwings are measured at amortised cost, with any 
difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and redemption value being recognised in 
profit or loss over the period of the bo1rnwings using the effective interest method. Borrowing 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, constrnction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised as property, plant and equipment. 

(h) Foreign currencies: 
Foreign currency balances at the reporting date are translated at the exchange rates ruling at that 
date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of 
those transactions. Gains and losses arising from fluctuations in exchange rates are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, all foreign currency gains and losses recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are treated as cash items and 
included in cash flows from operating or financing activities along with movement in the relevant 
balances. 

(i) Share capital: 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity where there is no obligation to transfer cash or other 
assets. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of shares are shown in equity as a 
deduction from the proceeds of the issue. 

(j) Dividends: 
Dividends on ordina1y shares are recognised in shareholders equity in the period in which they 
are approved by the Board of Directors. 

(k) Revenue recognition: 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The 
company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to and is accepted 
by a customer. Revenue from the sale of goods or provision of service represents the invoiced 
value of goods and services and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transfetTed 
to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recove1y of 
the consideration due or material associated costs on the possible return of goods. 

(I) Taxation: 
Taxation on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
at the date of the statement of financial position, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 
Defell'ed tax is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected mallller 
of realisation or settlement of the can-ying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted 
at the date of the statement of financial position. 
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THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 18 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(I) Taxation (continued): 
A defetTed tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that fut1.u·e taxable profits 
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are rednced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent 
that the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the tempora1y difference and it is 
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

(m) Impairment: 

Fi11a11cial assets 

The company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost and at fair value through OCI. This replaces IAS 39's 'incurred loss 
model'. 

Recognition of credit loss is no longer dependent on the company first identifying a credit loss 
event. Instead, the company considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk 
and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and 
supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of future cash flows of the instrnment. 

The company applies the simplified approach for trade receivables which is pennitted by IFRS 9. 

The simplified approach requires that the impainnent provision is measured at initial recognition 
and throughout the life of the receivables using a lifetime ECL. These are the expected sho1tfalls 
in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for defoult at any point during the life of the 
financial instrnment. 

The company uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward -looking information 
to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision matrix. 

The company assess impainnent of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared 
credit risk characteristics. They have been grouped based on the days past due. 

Individually significant receivables were considered for impairment when they were past due or 
when other objective evidence was received that a specific counterparty will default. Receivables 
that were not considered to be individually impaired were reviewed for impairment in groups, 
which are detennined by reference to the industry and region of the counterpa1ty and other shared 
credit risk characteristics. The impai1ment loss estimate was then based on recent historical 
counterparty default rates for each identified group. 

(n) Financial instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and 
a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. For the purpose of these financial 
statements, financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, 
investments and amounts due from related parties. Similarly, financial liabilities comprise trade 
and other payables and loans. 
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THE LLvlNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 19 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

3. Significant accounting policies /continued) 

(n) Financial instruments (continued): 

(i) Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 
assets and liabilities are initially recognised when the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
A financial asset (except a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or 
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not a FVTPL, 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable 
without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price. 

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 
The financial assets that meet both of the following conditions are not designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss: a) are held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
assets to collect contractual cash flows, and b) its contractual terms give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, are classified as "held to collect" and measured at amortised cost. 
Amortised cost represents the net present value (NPV) of the consideration receivable or 
payable as of the transaction date. This classification of financial assets comprises the 
following captions: 

• Cash and cash equivalents 
• Trade and other receivables 
• lnvestments 

Due to their short - tenn nature, the company initially recognises these assets at the original 
invoiced or transaction amount less expected credit losses. 
All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are presented within finance income, finance 
costs or other financial items, except for impainnent of trade receivables which is presented 
within other expenses. 
Subsequent measurement 

• Finance cost at amortised cost - These are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

• FVTPL - Any gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. 
• FVOCI - Any gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) will 

be recycled upon derecognition of the asset. None of the company's financial assets 
fall into this category. 

Derecog11ilio11 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or the company transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a 'pass - through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has 
trnnsfetTed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

(o) Leases: 
The company adopted IFRS 16 as at November I, 2019, consequently, all leases are accounted 
for by recognising a right - of - use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a ten11 greater 
than 12 months. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

3. Significant accounting policies /continued) 

( o) Leases ( continued): 
At the lease commencement date, the company recognises a right - of - use asset and a lease 
liability on the statement of financial position. Lease liability is measured at the present value of 
the contract11al payments due to the lessor over the lease term (including variable payments based 
on an index or rate), amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and 
payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised, with the discount rate 
determined by reference lo the rate inherent in the lease unless this is not readily determinable, in 
which case the company's incremental boJTowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. 
Other variable payments are expensed in the petiod to which they relate. 
Right - of - use assets are initially measured al the amount of the lease liability, reduced by any 
lease incentives received and increased for lease payments made at or before commencement of 
the lease, initial direct costs incurred and the amount of any provision recognised where the 
company is contractually required to dismantle, remove or restore the leased asset. 
Subsequent to initial measurement, lease liability will be increased as a resull of interest charged 
and reduced for payments made. Right - of - use assets are amortised on a straight - line basis 
over the shorter of the remaining lease term or over the remaining economic life of the leased 
asset. 
When the company revises its estimate of the tem1 of any lease or when the variable element of 
future payments dependent on an index or rate is revised, it adjusts the carrying amount of the 
liability to reflect the payments to be made over the revised term. Which were discounted at the 
same discount rate that applied on the lease commencement date. Similarly, an equivalent 
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right - of - use asset, with the revised carrying 
amount being amortised over the remaining lease term or useful economic life of the leased asset. 
The company has elected to account for shmi - tenn leases and leases of low value assets using 
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right - of - use asset and lease liability, the 
payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income on a straight - line basis over the lease term. 
The right - of - use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the assets' useful life and the lease 
term on a straight - line basis. 

(p) Finance costs and income: 

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate 
method. Finance income comprise interest income on funds invested. 

(q) Short - term employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefits including holiday entitlement are included in accruals, measured at 
the undiscounted amount that the company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 

(r) Operating segment: 

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by 
the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 
segments and assess performance. The company has three operating segments: agency, 
production and media. Results by segments are disclosed in Note 22. 
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THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 

Notes lo the Financial Statements 
Year ended October 31 2023 

I 0. Due from related pm1ies 

23 

The balances are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms (see note 23). 

II. Accounts receivable 

Group 

2023 2022 
.$_ .$_ 

Company 

2023 
.$_ 

Trade receivables 345,321,979 355,127,711 345,061,979 354,827,711 
Allowance for impainnent losses (i) ( 10 031 494) ( 9 949 015) ( IO 031.494) ( 9 949.015) 

335,290,485 345,178,696 
Other receivables 36 408 609 7 884 660 

lli,Ji22,ll21 ill 063 15_6 

335,030,485 344,878.696 
36 408 609 7 884 660 

ill 432.0JM ill.163.� 

(i) The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables during the year was as follows: 

Balance at beginning of year 
Impairment loss recognized 

12. Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank balances 
Shott -term bank deposits 

13. Share capital 

Authorized: 

5,000,000,000 ordinary shares 
without par value 
Issued and fully paid: 
945,690,252 ordina1y shares 
without par value 

14. Long -tenn loans 

(Note 17) 

Group 

2023 2022 
.$_ 

83,367,316 94,488,904 
275 834 298 258 347 338 

352 201.fil.1 352 836 2'12 

9.61 % National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited (i) 
8.5% National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited (ii) 

Current maturity oflong -term loans 

2023 2022 
.$_ .$_ 

9,949,015 
82 479 

_JO 031 494 

5,346,860 
4,602 155 

-2,242,Q I 5 

Company 

2023 2022 
.$_ .$_ 

80,853,454 91,792,121 
275 834 298 258 347 338 

356 687 752 J50,J32� 

2023 2022 
.$_ l 

ill,241,26 I l.28. 241,2,(i.!, 

2023 2022 
� � 

7,653,269 9,031,544 
14 995 000 

22,648,269 9,031,544 
9 527.644) ( 1.438.578) 

J..lJ.2.Q,62.5. 15...2.2.2.6.6 
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Y car ended October 3 J 2023 

14. Long-te1111 loans (continued) 

15. 

16. 

17. 

(i) The loan is secured by a bill of sale over a motor vehicle owned by the company. The vehicle is 
comprehensively insured with the bank's interest noted as mmtgagor. The loan is repayable in 
one hundred and two equal monthly payments. (See note 4). 

(ii) The loan is secured by a bill of sale over a motor vehicle owned by the company. The vehicle is 
comprehensively insured with the bank's interest noted as mo11gagor. The loan is repayable in 
ninety-six consecutive monthly payments. (See note 4) . 

Accounts payable and accrued charges 

Trade payables 
Other payables and accrued charges 

Operating revenue 

2023 
.$. 

163,230,236 
38 529 797 

201,7.6-0,033 

Group 

2022 
.$. 

192,211,684 
18 830 644 

lli,Q4 2 _,} _2 _8 

Company 

2023 
.$_ 

162,615,216 
38 529.797 

2{)!_ 145 OU 

2022 
l 

192,095,684 
18 830 644 

21 Q 22 _6 .3.2.8 

Operating revenue represents the invoiced value of services provided by the company, after discounts 
allowed and net of general consumption tax. 

Expenses by nature 

Administrative: 

Directors' remuneration -Executive 
Directors' fees -non -executive 
Staff costs 
Audit fees 
Depreciation and am011isation 
A111011isa1ion -right - of- use asset 
Other administrative expenses 

Selling and distribution: 

Advertising, promotion & entertainment 
Travelling 

Total administrative and selling 
and distribution expenses 

Impairment losses on financial assets: 

Trade receivables (note 1 l(i)) 

2023 
.$. 

33,389,000 
2,642,500 

175,768,901 
3,213,513 

18,561,185 
5,353,208 

99 847.670 

338 775.977 

2,681,780 
70.000 

2 751.780 

�21.Lill 

__ 82.,112 

Group 

2022 
1 

28,504,579 
2,218,125 

187,674,122 
2,600,000 
15,920,91 
5,353,206 

73 666 796 

315,937,745 

1,040,032 

I 040,032 

")Jii,9,77, 777 

J2ilbill 

Company 

2023 
.$_ 

33,389,000 
2,642,500 

I 72,566, I 88 
2,760,000 

18,561,185 
5,353,208 

98 807 339 

334 079 420 

2,034,907 
70 000 

2,104,907 

336. 184,327 

82,122 

2022 
.$. 

28,504,579 
2,218,125 

181,738,212 
2,300,000 

15,920,917 
5,353,206 

73.609 295 

309 644.334 

517,967 

517.967 

J _lJ)..,!!iVOJ 

jfilll.l�� 

� 
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THE LlMNERS AND BARDS LlMlTED 

Notes to Ille Financial Statements 
Y enr ended Oc1ol1er 3 1  . 2023 

1 7. Expenses by nature (coutim1ed) 

Group 

1 9. 

Sfaff costs 

Sala1ic.,s 
Employer's statutory contributions 
Other staff costs 

finance income: 

Foreib'll exchm1gc gain 
lnte!'es1 income 

fimrnce cost: 

Loan charges and interest 
Foreign exchange loss 
Lease interest 
Oank charges 

Taxation 

1,1 Current taxation 
Remission of ineomc tax 
Deferred taxation: 
Origination of temporary differences 

Total teixation in the statemem lll 
profit or lo�� 

(b) Reconciliation of cffrctivc t�lX rate : 
Profit before taxation 

Computed "expected" tax 
cxpc1Hc �-f 25%
T;,ix relieved under the J:vl.lSE
Difference hc1wccn rc�ults for 
Pinm1cial statements mid tax 
rcp01ting purposes in respect of: 
Disallowed items. net 

Aclual tax expense in tlic statement 
of profit or loss

25 

Company 

2023 2022 202] 2022
1 1 1 :; 

1 47.738. 1 9 1 1 58,788,246 1 44,845,981 1 53,869,883 
2 1 ,078,657 2 1 ,69 1 ,544 20,768, 154 20.855,688 

6 952.053 ---1J.24 })_1 6 952.053 7.0 1 2  n4! 

1 75,7.6_8,2.Ql lfil,..6...2;1,l.2-Z 1 72_.SJi_ §J_B_S J 8 1 ,738,2 lf 

I 

GrouJJ Company 

2023 ;Ul.24. 2023 2022 
1 1 , .$ 

2,988,503 2,988,503 
JO 579Xi_� _ 7.039 385 1 0 565 957 _ 1,0.1 urn2 
1 3  567-862 7.039 385 1 3  554 4(iQ 7,Q l l .882 

774,305) ( 707,452) ( 774.305) { 707.452) 
7,085.087) ( 7,085,087) 

8,057,342) ( 8,397,777) ( 8,057,342) ( 8.397,777) 
2.?94.146) ( I 376.344) ( 2.279.�-�l) ( LJ6_5.960) 

1 1 1 25 793) ( 1 7 566.6..6.Q) (_1 1 _ 1 ! 1 .529) { 1 7 .556.276) 

_2 _ _442,069 ( I O  5?.'Z.275) 

Group 

2023 2022 
! 

2 442 '.)J.J (_W,5.44.394) 

Company 

2023 
f 

J012 
l. 

J 6,059,297 39.464,580 1 6,059,297 39,464,580 
( ! 6,059,297) ( 39,464,580) ( 1 6.059.297) ( 39,464.580)

764.945 ------21..8..,_3_ 

764.945 --·- 978_ ,.8.B 

56 .5.5. L.}5S t41060)1.§ ..12.,fil.J,3-18 146. 975 430 

1 4, 137,889 35.765,045 14,902,835 36,743,857 
1 5,294,352) ( 38,485,767) ( 1 6,059,297) ( 39.464,580} 

1 92 1.408 3.699.535 1 . 156 462 2.720.723 

97:-: 81_3 
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Notes to Lbe Financial Statemen!s 
Y car ended October 3 1 .  2023 

1 9. Taxation (continued) 

26 

c). EffCCtivc July 26, 20 1 9. Ilic cornpany·s shares were !isled on the Junior Market of the Jamaica 
Stock Exchnnge (JMJSE). By notice dated August 1 3, 2009, the \·linisrer of Finance and the 
Public Service. issued and gazetted the Income Ta.'. (Jamaica Stock Exclrnnge Junior Market) 
Notice, 2009. The Notico effectively grn.nted a remission of income tax to ellgible compn.nles 
that are admitted to the JMJSE if certain conditions were achieved after that date of initial 
admission. Consequently, the company is ent itled 10 a remission of income tax for ten years 
from the date of li�ting in the propo11ions set out below, provided the sliares remain listed for at 
least 1 5  years. 

Years ! to 5 
Year.; 6 to JO 

1 00 %  
50% 

August l , 20 1 9 to July 3 1 . 2024 
August 1, 2024 to July 3 1  2029 

20. Earning;,_ p�r. _slock unit

I'hc calculation of earnings per stock unit is ba�ed on tl1e profit after taxation and lhe weiglJted average 
number of stock units ll1 issue during !he year. 

Net profit ntttil:lutablc to &liarcho\dcrs 
Ordinary stock unils 
Enrnings per stock unit 

2 1 .  Dividends 

2023 
l. 

57,316,500 
945,690,252 
----6� 

144,038,99 1 
945,690,252 

_l_i.i;; 

During the year the Board of Directors approved dividend and the payments were as follows: 

Final for 2021 12022, puid on fonuary 31, 2023, comprising ordimiry dividend or $0. 0065 per 
ordinary share and a special divirlcnd of $0.0304 per ordinary .,hare to shareholders on record at 
January 13. 2023. 

22. Se.rmenl reportin.r

I'he company has (hree 1·eportable segments: production, media and agency. Performance is measured 
based on segrnenl gross profit and managemen1 ha� determined that this measure is the most relevant in 
evaluating results and allocating res.omces. Assets and liabilities are not assigned to each segmenl. 
Segment i1i forrrn1tion for the reporling period are as fol1ows: 

Revenue 
Direct co�ts 

Revenue 
Direct costs 

Gro�s profit 

Ycnr Ended October 31. 2023 

Production i\.fodia 
> 1 

296,066,125 672,910.888 
( 1 3 1  562 RO]) (578 297 463) 

_1__6.4,5.QJ,3.2.4 94,6 13,425 

Year Ended October 31, 2(122 

Production \.fedi.:i 
a a 

430,547 , 135 7 1 6,2 1 5,865 
(207 901 660) (606.962.598) 

ill,M.'i..�l.7 �'i 1_9J,25..'U.6.I 

Agency Total 
ii � 

1 55,772,6 1 7  1 . 1 24,749.630 
( 25 970. 720) (.,}35 830.984) 

129)tQ_l,.8!l'Z _3_8_S.,2J.8Jd§ 

Agency Total 
� ;, 

1 98,01 8,456 1 ,344,781 ,456 
( 55 6 1 0 .�09) ( 870 475 1 64) 

HZA.illiiLl 47.4,306J�2 
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23. Related pmty transactions 

27 

The statements of financial position and profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes the 
following related pa,ty transactions arising from the ordina,y course of business during the year. 

Transactions during the year: 

Scope Caribbean Ltd - income (eliminated on consolidation) 
Scope Caribbean Ltd - costs ( eliminated on consolidation) 
Lease payments - Kimala Bennett Realty Company 
Due from/to (eliminated on consolidation) 
Yea1· end balances: 

Due from (note 10) 

24. Financial risk management 

4,177,510 
2,401,000 

_H! 410.442 
2 340 603 

_l ill,285 

554,500 
2,746,225 

1J1.1.1Q .44� 

---8 997 L86 

Exposure to various types of financial instrument risk arises in the ordinary course of the company's 
business. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
company's risk management framework. The company's risk management policies are established to 
identify and analyse risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed on a regular basis and 
reflect changes in market conditions and the company's activities. 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail lo discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises principally on trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and investments. There is no significant concentration of 
credit risk and the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the canying amount of each 
financial asset. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment 

2023 
� 

358,161,555 
343,833 

1,362,285 
371.699.094 

2022 
i 

352,293,062 
408.302 

8.997,186 
353.063 356 

Due from related pa,ties 
Accounts receivable 

(i) 
13_L,566..16_7 714.7611lllfi 

Trade receivables 

The company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics 
of each customer. The demographics of the company·s customer base has less of an 
innuence on credit risk. 
A credit policy has been established under which each customer is analysed individually for 
creditworthiness. Credit is granted to customers on the approval of management. During the 
credit approval process, the customer is assessed for certain indicators of possible 
delinquency. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to the 
ageing or their debt. The company does not require collateral in respect of trade and other 
receivables. 
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Notes lo the Financial Statements 
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24. Financial risk mana11.ement (continued) 

(a) Credit risk (continued): 

(i) Trade receivables ( continued) 
The company establishes an allowance for impainnent that represents its estimate of 
incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The allowances for doubtful debts 
are based on the ageing of the receivables and the customer's ability to pay. 
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profile for sales over the last 24 months 
as well as the historical losses during the period. Individual customer payment history also 
fo,ms a critical part in the analysis. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect fo,ward 
looking economic factors affecting the customer's ability to pay. Trade receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 
The expected credit loss for trade receivables as at October 31, 2023 were as follows: 

Current 31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days Total 
ECL rate 1% 1.5% 2% 5% 
Gross carrying amount 7j,45_2,85 .. 0 5A7__1.2K� Tl 591 802 138-285 ?26 }4;L05/i 732 
Lifetime ECL 744,5__92 820 79-8 ..J.lliJU .. 6 (i,914 261 IOLQ,11494 

October 31, 2022 
Current 31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days Total 

ECL rate 1% 1.5% 2% 5% 
Gross canying amount .ill..222. 411 ]JI, 667cJ2.l l..i.fil!i..3.14 JA6.,2fili�5__6.2 3 54 827,lli 
Lifetime ECL 1,142 224 ..J. 179 93_6 313 527 ----1..,3 I \ill -2.242,015 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
The company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining these balances with financial 
institutions which management considered to be stable and only with counterparties that are 
appropriately licensed and regulated. Management does not expect any counterparty lo fail 
lo meet its obligations. 
The company considers that cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk. No impainnenl 
allowances were recognised on initial adoption of IFRS 9 and there has been no change 
during the year. 

(b) Market risk: 
Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will nuctuate as a result of changes 
in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security 
or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The company has no 
significant exposure to market risk as financial instruments subject lo this risk are not material. 

(i) Interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. The company minimises interest rate risk by 
investing mainly in fixed rate instruments and contracting liabilities at fixed rates, where 
possible. The company's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank loans. 
The company does not account for any interest bearing financial instrument at fair value, 
therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the canying value 
of the company"s financial instruments. 
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JHE_LlMli_ERS AKD BARDS LIMITED 

Notes to the rinancial Statements 
YG<)I en<led _Q_qQ_b_�r 31_ 2023 

25. rair value of finmx:ial in�lrmnents 

3 I 

The fair value of short - term monctmy assets and liabilities arc assumed to approximate lht:iT carrying 
valuc:s due to their relatively short - [<;:rm nature. Long - term loans are cmTied at the contractual 
setllemcnt amount� 
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DISCLOSURE OF 
SHAREHOLDINGS

THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED 
Shareholding of Directors, senior managers and top ten shareholders 

At October 31, 2023

DIRECTORS TOTAL Direct Connected Party

Kimala Bennett - 728,265,602-         

   Kimala Bennett Private Company Limited - 728,181,394-         

   Adrian Randle - 84,208-                  

Tashara-Lee Johnson - 21,698,669-           21,461,669

   Ann-Marie Francis - 237,000-                

Steven Gooden - 2,728,412-             2,728,412 - -  -                        

Michael Bennett - 1,000,000-             - 1,000,000-             - -  -                        

Rochelle Cameron - 100,000-                - 100,000-                - -  -                        

Maxine Walters - -  -                        - -  -                        - -  -                        

Kareem Tomlinson - -  -                        - -  -                        - -  -                        

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Kimala Bennett - 728,265,602-         - 728,265,602-         

Tashara-Lee Johnson - 21,698,669-           - 21,461,669-           - 237,000-                

Colleen Corke-Campbell - 10,000-                  - 10,000-                  - -  -                        

Samantha Whyte - 50,000-                  - 50,000-                  - -  -                        

Kimberley Adamson - -  -                        - -  -                        

Dexter Musgrave - -  -                        - -  -                        - -  -                        

Wendy-Ann Smith Anderson - -  -                        - -  -                        - -  -                        

TOP TEN (10) SHAREHOLDERS

1 Kimala Bennett Private Company Limited - 728,181,394-         77.0000% - -  -                        

2 NCB Capital Markets. A/C 2231 - 36,843,131-           3.8959% - -  -                        

3  JAMAICA MONEY MARKET BROKERS LTD - 23,689,880-           2.5050% - -  -                        

4 Tashara – Lee Johnson - 21,461,669-           2.2694% - -  -                        

5 ATL Group Pension Fund Trustee Nominee Ltd - 16,000,000-           1.6919% - -  -                        

6
JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED A/C BARITA UNIT 
TRUST CAPITAL GROWTH FUND - 13,667,762-           1.4453% - -  -                        

7 MF & G Asset Management Limited - 7,677,523-             0.8118% - -  -                        

8 PAM-Pooled Equity Fund - 6,252,063-             0.6611%

9 Douglas Orane - 5,000,000-             0.5287% - -  -                        

10 Randy Rowe - 4,671,008-             0.4939% - -  -                        

- -  -                        

Total Units Owned by Top 10 Shareholders - 863,444,430-         

Total Issued Capital 945,690,252

Total Percentage Owned by Top 10 Shareholders 91.3031%
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I/We_____________________________________________________________________________________of_________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
being member/members of THE LIMNERS AND BARDS LIMITED (“The LAB”) hereby appoint_________________________________________
of_____________________________________________________ or failing him The Chairman of the Board of The Limners and Bards Limited.
as my/our proxy vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on July 18, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.  at 
the Head Office of the LAB, Units 4-5, 69 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10, Jamaica. and/or virtually and at any adjournment thereof.
Please indicate with an X in the space provided how you wish your proxy to vote on the Resolution referred to.  Unless otherwise indicated, 
the proxy will vote as he thinks fit.

FORM OF PROXY

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

RESOLUTION NO. 1
Directors’ Report and Auditors Report and Audited Financial Statements

RESOLUTION NO. 2 
To ratify the ordinary dividends of $0.0065 per share and special dividends of 0.0304 paid on 
January 31, 2023

RESOLUTION NO. 3 Retirement and Re-election of Director

Resolution 3a
“THAT Mr. Michael Bennett be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the company”.

Resolution 3b
“THAT Ms. Maxine Walters be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the company”.

Resolution 3c
“THAT Ms. Tashara Lee Johnson be and is hereby elected a Director of the company.”

RESOLUTION NO. 4
Directors’ Remuneration

RESOLUTION NO. 5
Appointment and remuneration of the Auditors 

Signed this _________  day of____________________2024.  Signature: _______________________________________________________________ 69



NOTES:
1.	 This Form of Proxy must be lodged at the Registered Office of the company (69-75 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10) or the 

Registrar, Jamaica Central Securities Depository (“JCSD”), 40 Harbour Street, Kingston, not later than forty-eight (48) hours before 
the meeting.

2.	 Any alterations in this Form of Proxy should be initiated.
3.	 In the case of joint holders, the signature of one holder will be sufficient but the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in 

person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of other joint-holders, seniority being determined by the order 
in which the names stand on the register.

4.	 If the appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an Office or 
Attorney duly authorised.

5.	 An adhesive stamp of $100.00 must be affixed to the Form of Proxy.
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